PROVI SI ONAL

E/ 1997/ SR. 40
14 August 1997

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

ECONOM C AND SOCI AL COUNCI L
Subst antive session of 1997
PROVI SI ONAL SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 40t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 23 July 1997, at 3 p.m

Presi dent : M.  CHOADHURY (Bangl adesh)
(Vi ce-President)
CONTENTS
REPORTS, CONCLUSI ONS AND RECOMMENDATI ONS OF SUBSI DI ARY BODI ES (conti nued)
(d) HUMAN RI GHTS QUESTI ONS (conti nued)
| MPLEMENTATI ON OF THE DECLARATI ON ON THE GRANTI NG OF | NDEPENDENCE TO COLONI AL
COUNTRI ES AND PEOPLES BY THE SPECI ALI ZED AGENCI ES AND THE | NTERNATI ONAL
I NSTI TUTI ONS ASSCCI ATED W TH THE UNI TED NATI ONS
| MPLEMENTATI ON OF GENERAL ASSEMBLY RESOLUTI ON 50/ 227
NON- GOVERNVENTAL ORGANI ZATI ONS ( cont i nued)

(a) REPORT OF THE COVMM TTEE ON NON- GOVERNMENTAL ORGANI ZATI ONS

(b) I NCREASE | N THE MEMBERSHI P OF THE COVM TTEE ON NON- GOVERNMENTAL
ORGANI ZATI ONS

NEW AND | NNOVATI VE | DEAS FOR GENERATI NG FUNDS

Corrections to this record should be submtted in one of the working
| anguages. They should be set forth in a nenorandum and al so i ncorporated in
a copy of the record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this

docunent to the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des
Nat i ons, Geneva.

GE. 97-63595 (E)



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 2

In the absence of M. GaluSka (Czech Republic), M. Chowdhury
(Bangl adesh), Vice-President, took the Chair.

The neeting was called to order at 3.15 p.m

REPORTS, CONCLUSI ONS AND RECOMMENDATI ONS OF SUBSI DI ARY BODI ES (agenda item 7)
(continued)

(d) HUMAN RI GHTS QUESTI ONS (conti nued)
Ms. SYAHRUDDI N (Cbserver for Indonesia), speaking on behalf of the

States nenbers of the Organization of the Islamc Conference (O C), reiterated

her earlier request that her delegation's statenment of 22 July should be
publ i shed and circul ated as an official docunent of the Council and the
CGeneral Assenbly; that sub-heading E.3 entitled “Islam st and Arab
Anti-Semtisni of the report of the Special Rapporteur on contenporary
forms of racism racial discrimnation, xenophobia and related intol erance
(E/CN. 4/ 1997/ 71) should be deleted and that that deletion should be nentioned
in the Council's report on its current session

M. KAABACHI (Tunisia) said he associated hinself with the

statement by the representative of Indonesia.
Ms. STARR NEWELL (Assistant Secretary of the Council) said that

the text of the statenent by the representative of Indonesia would be
circulated no later than the follow ng norning.*

| MPLEMENTATI ON OF THE DECLARATI ON ON THE GRANTI NG OF | NDEPENDENCE TO COLONI AL
COUNTRI ES AND PEOPLES BY THE SPECI ALI ZED AGENCI ES AND THE | NTERNATI ONAL

I NSTI TUTI ONS ASSOCI ATED W TH THE UNI TED NATI ONS (agenda item 9)

(A/ 52/ 159-E/ 1997/ 69, A/ 52/179-E/ 1997/76; E/ 1997/81; A/ 52/185; E/ 1997/L. 48)

M. RIVERO ROSARI O (Cuba), representative of the Special Committee

on the Situation with regard to the Inplenmentation of the Declaration on the
Granting of Independence to Col onial Countries and Peoples, introduced the
report of the Secretary-Ceneral on inplenentation of that declaration by the
speci al i zed agencies and the international institutions associated with the
United Nations (A/52/185). The remaining territories covered by the

Decl aration were small islands, primarily in the Caribbean and Pacific, which
faced uni que problens owing to their small size and population, limted
natural resources and vulnerability to natural disasters and environnmenta

hazar ds.

* Subsequently circul ated as docunent A/ 52/256-E/ 1997/ 108.



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 3

The General Assenbly had repeatedly stated, however, that those factors
should in no way prevent the peoples of those Territories from exercising
their inalienable right to self-determ nation and i ndependence and, in 1988,
had | aunched an internati onal decade and adopted a Plan of Action designed to
achi eve that goal by the year 2000. The adm nistering Powers and specialized
agencies, particularly the United Nations Devel opment Programe (UNDP), had
an inportant role to play in ensuring the sustained econonic and socia
advancenent of Non-Sel f-Governing Territories which was an essentia
prerequisite to the inplenentation of the Declaration. There was a need for
cooperation between the specialized agencies and international institutions
and for inproved, increased and streamined assistance in the areas of the
envi ronnent, natural disasters, public health, education, food
sel f-sufficiency, fisheries, crime prevention and illicit trafficking.

Those probl ens had been enphasi zed at the Cari bbean Regi onal Sem nar
held at St. Johns, Antigua and Barbuda, in May 1997, which had called on
the Special Conmittee to assist the Non-Self-Governing Territories and to
participate in the relevant United Nations programmes and projects. On
20 June 1997, the Special Conmittee had adopted a resol ution which requested
the specialized agencies to accel erate social and economni c programmes for
and continue to nonitor environnental conditions in the Non-Self-Governing
Territories and called on the adm nistering Powers to protect the environnment
of those Territories and take nmeasures to counter problens related to drug
trafficking, noney |laundering and other offences.

He appealed to the Council to ensure inplenentation of its
resolution 1996/ 37 on the subject and hoped that the adm nistering Powers
woul d facilitate the participation of appointed and el ected representatives of
the Territories in the nmeetings and conferences of the specialized agencies.

Ms. ASHI PALA- MUSAVYI (Cbserver for Namibia) said it was inportant

to remenber that the peoples of the Non-Self-Governing Territories were al so
very vul nerable from an environnmental point of view She wel coned the
establishment of the Small |sland Devel opi ng States I nformation

Networ k (SIDSNET) and Snall |sland Devel opi ng States Techni cal Assistance
Programe (SI DSTAP) (E/ 1997/81, para. 16) and the participation by UNDP and



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 4

the Wrld Health Organization (WHO) in the recent Caribbean Regi onal Sem nar
it was unfortunate, however, that no other United Nations agencies had
parti ci pat ed.

The economi ¢ and social well-being of the people living in the
Non- Sel f- Governing Territories nust be viewed within the context of the
legitimacy of their desire for self-devel opnment, which had been recogni zed by
the General Assenbly, the Security Council and other United Nations bodies.
Her del egation therefore fully supported the draft resolution on the
subj ect (E/ 1997/L. 48).

The PRESI DENT said he assunmed that the Council w shed to take note

of the Secretary-General's reports (A/52/159-E/1997/69, and A/ 52/185) and the

report of the President of the Council on his consultations with the Chairman
of the Special Commttee (E/ 1997/81).

It was so deci ded.

Draft resolution on inplenentation of the Declaration on the G anting of

| ndependence to Colonial Countries and Peoples by the specialized agencies
and the international institutions associated with the United Nations

(E/ 1997/ L. 48)

M. AMAT FORES (Cuba), introducing the draft resolution on behalf

of its sponsors, said that its primary purpose was to request the specialized
agenci es and other United Nations bodies and international and regi ona
organi zations to increase their assistance to the Non-Self-Coverning
Territories and to request the adm nistering Powers to facilitate
participation by the representatives of the Territories in conferences
hel d by such organi zations.

The PRESI DENT said that the Council would postpone action on the

draft resolution until the follow ng day.

| MPLEMENTATI ON OF GENERAL ASSEMBLY RESOLUTI ON 50/ 227 (agenda item 12)
(E/ 1996/ 97 and Add. 1, A/52/155-E/1997/68 and Add.1, E/1997/78 and 101)

Report of the Secretary-General on restructuring and revitalization of the
United Nations in the econonic, social and related fields (A/52/155-E/ 1997/68
and Add. 1)

M. KHAN (Division for Policy Coordination and Economi ¢ and Soci a
Council Affairs), introducing the report, said it was the second progress
report on inplenentation of General Assenbly resolution 50/227. The Counci

had made significant progress in the followup to conferences, establishing



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 5

a closer relationship with the Bretton Wods institutions and inproving its
oversight role of the functional comm ssions and its operational activities
for devel opnent. Further progress was, however, needed in the areas of
resources mnobilization, streamining the agendas and rel ated docunentation of
the Council and of the Second and Third Committees of the General Assenbly and
ensuring conplenentarity between the work of the General Assenbly and that of
t he Counci |

A separate note prepared by UNDP (E/ 1997/ 101) described the steps taken
in preparation for a joint United Nations/Bretton Wods institutions review
pursuant to General Assenbly resolution 50/227 and Council resolution 1996/ 43.
The note described cooperation between the Secretary-General and the
Bretton Whods institutions, the results of a prelimnary questionnaire on
cooperation at the country level and action by the International Mpnetary
Fund (I MF) and the World Bank in response to CGeneral Assenbly and Counci
resol utions. There was also a separate note on | MF cooperation with the
United Nations (E/1997/78). The Secretary-Ceneral's note (E/ 1997/101)
recommended that a report on the joint review should be submtted to the
Council at its substantive session of 1998.

He al so drew the Council's attention to the addendumto the
Secretary-Ceneral's report (A/52/155/Add. 1-E/ 1997/ 68/ Add. 1), which showed t hat
the costs of holding Council sessions at New York and at Geneva were roughly
conparable. It should be borne in mnd, however, that optinum use of
conference facilities would also contribute to cost effectiveness by
avoi di ng unnecessary strain on the facilities at any one |ocation

M. |SAKOV (Russian Federation) said that, while the
Secretary-Ceneral’s report provided an inventory of efforts made to inplenent
resol ution 50/227, it offered scant analysis of the results. Proper
i nteraction between the Second and Third Committees was still |acking.

Del egati ons should al so be better informed, and itenms grouped in a nore

| ogi cal order. The nunber of resolutions should be decreased and new formats
for discussion encouraged, in order to reduce the nunber of nonol ogues at the
CGeneral Assenbly. Documentation should also be streamined and i ssued on
time, and del egations should exercise restraint in demandi ng additiona
reports. His delegation welconed the early distribution of unedited

docunent ati on, whether as hard copies or on the Internet.



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 6

As for the Council, its working nmethods should be revi ewed nore
frequently and realistically. Coordination issues had not been di scussed
properly at the current session, and the heads of the funds, progranmes and
speci al i zed agenci es had | argely been absent during the debate, despite being
menbers of the Administrative Conmittee on Coordination (ACC). Furthernore
a nunber of the initiatives being | obbied by individual delegations lay far
out side the Council’s traditional mandate. The Council was still overburdened
with itens marginal to its coordinating role.

Hi s del egati on questioned the wi sdom of entrusting an appropriate body
with preparing for the follow ng high-Ilevel segment (A/52/155-E 1997/68,
para. 16). Although a special joint nmeeting between the Council and
Bretton Whods institutions in spring 1998 was not to be di scouraged, he
wonder ed whet her there was any real need for it, since no theme had been
agreed upon.

The Secretary-General’s report woul d have benefited from greater
anal ysis of the Council’s interaction with the funds and progranmes and
comments on the relationship with the international financial institutions
could have been nore “action-orientated”.

Ms. KIRSCH (Luxenbourg), speaking on behalf of the European Union
said that resolution 50/227 marked an inportant stage in the restructuring
and revitalization of the United Nations in the econonmic, social and rel ated
fields. The Council nust continue to streanmline and restructure its agenda to
ensure adequate coverage. For its part, the Union and its nenbers had been
actively participating in the Council’s review of the subsidiary bodies and
regi onal commi ssions, which had begun auspi ci ously.

The report on cooperation between the United Nations and the
I nternational Monetary Fund (I M) (E/ 1997/78) was an informative one, which
testified to the cooperation efforts already under way.

M. MCHUMO (CObserver for the United Republic of Tanzania),
speaki ng on behalf of the Goup of 77 and China, said that the Council had
been mandat ed under resol ution 50/227 (sect. V) to begin the review of its
subsi di ary bodies. Since no clear consensus had yet energed, the debate
shoul d continue at the Council’s resunmed session

The wor ki ng nethods of the Conmi ssion on Science and Technol ogy for
Devel opnent coul d be inproved and a focus on priorities for devel oping

countries (such as technol ogy transfer and capacity-building) ensured. The



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 7

Conmi ssion's functional status and mandate shoul d, however, be maintai ned,
since subsuming it under any other body woul d reduce its cross-sectoral scope.
The Conmittee on New and Renewabl e Sources of Energy and Energy for
Devel opnment shoul d be retained, since it had a conprehensi ve approach to
energy issues. Devel oping countries would, however, welcome a greater focus
on new and renewabl e sources of energy.

There was an energi ng consensus that water-resource issues could
be transferred fromthe Conmittee on Natural Resources to the Comm ssion
on Sustai nabl e Devel opnent, with a viewto initiating a strategic and
conprehensi ve approach to the sustainable use of freshwater. It remained to
be deternmi ned whether the Cormittee's mandate should be focused on mnera
resource issues, or whether alternative arrangenments shoul d be made.

The G oup of 77 and China were in favour of retaining the mandate of
the Comrittee for Devel opnent Pl anning but of including within its terns of
reference an analysis of themes chosen for the Council’s high-Ilevel segnent or
of themes subnmtted by other United Nations bodies. The Conmittee should al so
continue categorizing the | east devel oped countries (LDCs). It mght possibly
be renaned the “Committee on Devel opnent |ssues”

Ms. AQUILINA (Qbserver for Malta), having praised the

conprehensi ve nature of the docunentation provided under the item and
expressed support for the Secretary-General’s reconmmendati ons on econom ¢
and social affairs, said that the Council should take speedy action on the
decisions relating to subsidiary bodies so as not to retard the reform
process.

M. SFEIR-YOUNIS (Wrld Bank) stressed the Bank’s readiness to

cooperate in the inplenentation of resolution 50/227. Cooperation and the
formati on of effective partnerships were essential to any strategy for future
relations with the United Nations, and were central to the Bank's “Strategic
Conpact”.

Overl apping nust indeed be mnimzed, to avoid unnecessary wastage of
time and resources, and partnerships nust be based on a proper understandi ng

of individual mandates and rel ative conparative advantages, since the bodies



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 8

concerned shared a virtually identical nmenbership. Such was the val ue of
diversity. Since all the organizations were undergoing refornms, attention
shoul d be focused on the future, not on the past.

At the policy level, the instrunents for coordination included bilatera
and rmultilateral consultations by heads of agencies, debates on joint work
programmes and strategies, and the drafting of various agreenments and
menor anda of under st andi ng.

At the institutional |evel, exchange primarily involved maxim zi ng
synergy at all levels of decision-making on areas including comrunications,

i nformati on exchange, cost sharing, project nanagi ng and fi nancing.

At the operational |evel, cooperation occurred on hundreds of fronts, a
wel | - known exanpl e being the Bank’s full partnership in the Special Initiative
for Africa. Joint projects were being conducted with nearly every agency of
the United Nations system Certain collaborative efforts dated back many
years (such as those with the Food and Agricultural Organization (FAQ)).

I nformal nodes of cooperation also nade a substantial contribution to
devel opnent and produced excellent results.
M. LOZANO ARREDONDO (Mexico) said that his del egation, which had

al ways supported the restructuring and revitalization of the United Nations
as part of an inproved multilateral system deenmed it inportant to increase
the effectiveness of intergovernmental activities as a means of reducing
over| appi ng between United Nations bodies. It was unfortunate that the
addendumto the Secretary-GCeneral's report (A/52/155/Add. 1-E/ 1997/ 68/ Add. 1)
provi ded a purely nuneric assessnent rather than a broader evaluation and
suggestions for sinplification of the systemof rotation of the Council's
sessi ons between New York and Geneva, which had a major effect on neeting
schedul ing and participation. Hi s delegation would reserve nore detailed
comment for the discussion in the General Assenbly.

M. WNNCK (United States of America), having enphasized the
i nportance of fully inplenenting resolution 50/227, said it was to be hoped
that the itemwould be taken up again at the resuned session on the basis of
a further progress report. The Council should provide guidance for inproved
coordi nati on of the conplex debate on its subsidiary bodies, which was
occurring in a nunber of forums. The Bureau nust be highly active throughout

the year, and, in fact, the Council should function nore |ike a Board.



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 9

In atime of limted resources, close cooperation between the
i nternational financial institutions and the United Nations was essential. It
was clear fromthe reports (E/ 1997/78 and 101) that nuch still remained to be
done. UNDP, with its budget of US$ 1 billion, could, for exanple, usefully
conpl ement the work of IMF and the World Bank
Par adoxi cal l y, the report on cooperation between the United Nations
and | M (E/1997/78) had been conpiled by the I M alone, in the absence of any
real collaboration, although it did admt that better collaboration would be
useful for the preparation of Country Strategy Notes (CSNs) and nationa
Pol i cy Framework Papers (PFPs).
M. HYNES (Canada) said he agreed with previous speakers that
di scussion of the agenda item should continue at the Council's resumed
session. It was unreasonable to expect serious debate on the | essons | earned
to date, since cooperation with the international financial institutions
was in its early stages only. The fruitful debate with the heads of the
i nternational financial institutions and heads of funds and programes at
t he begi nning of the current session mght have been followed through nore
effectively. Future debate should thus include nore issues of interest to
t he heads in question
Ms. HAVKINS (Australia) said she agreed on the need for further
di scussion of the itemat the resuned session. Her del egation had been very
encour aged, however, by the progress nmade in review ng the subsidiary bodies.
M. ZULU (I nternational Mnetary Fund (I MF)), replying to
the representative of the United States, explained that the Fund's
report (E/1997/78) was not intended to stand alone, but to serve as a
contribution to a larger report that was to be produced by the United Nations
system | M- had taken the opportunity to conduct a survey of what was
happeni ng “on the ground”, which had proved highly benefi ci al
Cooperation with the United Nations had been evolving for pragmatic
reasons, since it enriched the policy focus. All the institutions involved in
the process were in a state of considerable flux. Reforms at | M- ranged from
the revision of Data Di ssem nation Standards to the New Arrangenments to

Borrow. Articles of agreenent were being anmended in order to liberalize the



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 10

capital account, and I MF was increasing its contributions to devel opi ng
countries. Mich cooperation was occurring, in a sense, behind the scenes,
since it was inpossible to record it all

M. CABACTULAN (Philippines) said he agreed that the Counci

shoul d devote nore tinme to ensuring that resolution 50/227 was inplenmented
to the satisfaction of all delegations. It should also recomrend to the
executive boards of funds and programnmes that they urgently review and
regularly monitor institutional restructuring and financing arrangenents,
with a view to enhancing the security and predictability of core funding for
meeti ng programe targets and country requirenments. The Council should make
its own funding decisions in accordance with resolution 50/227, and review the
situation at the follow ng year's session
M. KHAN (Division for Policy Coordination and Economi ¢ and Soci a

Council Affairs) said that the Secretary-Ceneral's report shoul d perhaps be
seen within the |arger context of what had happened at other meetings and of
the whole reform process, particularly the Track Two refornms. While sone
el enments of the report mght seemrather thinly covered or insufficiently
analytical, it should not be forgotten that the analysis of the reports of the
executive boards of the funds and programmes and the oversight role of the
Counci | had been the subject of a separate note by the Secretary-General, on
whi ch there had been no discussion

On the question whether significant inprovenments had in fact been made
in the consideration of the Council's report by the General Assenmbly, he noted
t hat paragraph 27 of the report stated only that significant inprovenents had
been nmade in the structure and presentation of the Council's report with a
view to assisting the Assenbly in its deliberations. The Council's npst
recent report did, in fact, differ significantly fromthe earlier ones in
its structure and presentation, and the Second and Third Commttees had
acknow edged the inprovenent.

As for the question whether it was appropriate to entrust preparations
for the high-level segnent of the Council to one of the functiona
commi ssions, he referred to paragraph 16, which nmade it clear that the
i nvol venent of a functional comr ssion was to be regarded as only one aspect

of the preparatory procedure. The recommendati on was drawn from recent



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 11

experience. The Secretary-GCGeneral was not abdicating his own responsibility
to make a full and conprehensive evaluation of any input by a functiona
commi ssi on or other body.

As for the joint exploratory review by the United Nations and the
Bretton Whods institutions called for in resolution 50/227, and the question
of stream ining the agendas of the Second and Third Committees, the
Secretary-Ceneral's report could only present the situation as it existed: it
was for the Menber States to debate the issues which the Secretary-General had
identified. Consultations had taken place with the international finance and
trade institutions and sone agreenent had been reached on how such a neeting
shoul d be prepared, what kinds of things could be done in it and how t he
nmeeting itself should be handl ed.

The representative of Mexico had pointed out that the note prepared by
the Secretariat (E/ 1997/68/Add.1) focused only on the cost estimtes of the
substantive session of the Council. The fact was that, while recognizing the
broader aspects, resolution 50/227 focused in a najor way on the issue of
costs and it was not altogether clear how the other aspects of arrangenents
for sessions of the Council could be assessed. The participation aspect cane
largely within the purview of Menber States and the Secretary-General would
find it difficult to determ ne what the inplications of the |ocation of the
sessions mght be in terns of participation

As to the dates and duration of the sessions, the Council had recently
di scussed those matters and agreed on them The Council was currently engaged
inits first four-week substantive session but suggestions had been put
forward about spreading its work over the year. The Secretariat had felt that
the tinme was not ripe for the Secretary-Ceneral to put forward new i deas and
proposals in that regard and had therefore refrained from addressing the
guestion of the duration and dates of sessions. A useful discussion had taken
pl ace whi ch the Bureau woul d be able to use as a basis for its own proposals
regardi ng the recomendati ons.

The PRESI DENT said that he wi shed that the Council had been able

to give nore in-depth attention to what was clearly a very inportant item
that shoul d, perhaps, have cone earlier in the agenda. Section Il of the
Secretary-Ceneral's report contained a nunber of reconmrendations in connection
with the inplenmentati on of General Assenbly resolution 50/227, on the funding

of operational activities for devel opnment, on the General Assenbly, on



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 12

docunentation and related matters, on the Council and on the relationship
between the United Nations and the international financial and trade
institutions. It was not clear whether the Council was ready to adopt those
recommendations. It had been suggested that consideration of the item should
be continued at the resuned session, but there was a tim ng problem Sone of
the recomendations related to the work of the Second and Third Committees of
the General Assenbly. |If the Council's resumed session were held any |ater
t han the begi nning of Septenber, the Assenmbly Conmittees would not be able
to take advantage of them and they woul d be del ayed for a year or nore.

If the resuned session was scheduled for early Septenber, the Bureau
of the Council would need to fornul ate recomendati ons for adoption by the
Council and arrange for themto be exanmi ned at the resuned session, which
woul d then recommend that the General Conmittee of the Ceneral Assenbly
shoul d take theminto account in organizing the Assenbly's work. He needed
the Council's guidance. |If its menbers were not ready to adopt the
recommendati ons at once, he wondered whet her they would agree to take them up
at a resuned session early in Septenber, with a view to forwarding themto the
General Conmittee of the Ceneral Assenbly.

Ms. KIRSCH (Luxenbourg), speaking on behalf of the European Union
said that it would be preferable to address the recomendations in a w der
framework at the resuned session in Septenber.

M . CABACTULAN (Philippines) said that adoption of the

recommendati ons shoul d be postponed, since sonme of them needed very carefu
exam nation. He nmentioned, for exanple, the section on funding of operationa
activities for devel opnent, nmatters connected with which would be included in
the resolution to be adopted on operational activities. The recommendations
shoul d be considered in greater detail at a resumed session, which should be
held as early as possible so as not to interfere with the work of the G oup
of 77 regarding followup action to inplenment resolution 50/227. For the
moment, the Council should take note of the report and decide to continue

the consideration thereof at its resuned session

The PRESI DENT said that his suggestions applied only to the

recommendations in section A of part Il of the report. Paragraphs 20, 21
and 22 were in section B and related to inplenentation.
M. 1SAKOV (Russian Federation) said that it |ooked as though the

Council would have to revert to the itemat its resuned session. For the tine



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 13

bei ng, the President should hold infornmal consultations on the issues that had
been raised with a view to presenting proposals for adoption at the resuned
sessi on.

The PRESI DENT said that the documents in question were also |isted

as General Assenbly docunents, but not in the context of “Organization of
Wrk”. As he sawit, they were related to that itemrather than to item 58
on the “Restructuring and revitalization of the United Nations in the
econom c, social and related fields”. By the time that itemcame up in
the Second Committee, the work progranme woul d al ready have been deci ded.

The Council mght thus wish to decide that the inplenmentation of
CGeneral Assenbly resolution 50/227 should be considered at its resumed
session; that the Bureau should make sone suggestions on how to proceed with
regard to the recommendati ons contained in the docunents; that the item
entitled “Inplenentati on of resolution 50/227" should be at the head of the
Council's agenda and that the resuned session should be held in the first
10 days of Septenber so that the Council's recommendations could be sent to
the President of the Ceneral Assenbly for reflection in the organization of
the work of the Second and Third Conmittees.

M. MEYER (Luxenbourg) said that, if the resuned session was going

to take up all the outstanding issues, it mght have to | ast sonme tine.

The PRESI DENT said that the Council could postpone its decision to

t he next neeting when the proposed cal endar of conferences for Septenber would
be available. It was inportant, however, that it should take a decision as to
the dates of the resuned session

M. KAMANDO (Observer for the United Republic of Tanzania),
speaki ng on behalf of the Goup of 77 and China, asked the Bureau to consider
recommendi ng that the resuned session should take place at the very beginning
of Septenber, since a Mnisterial Meeting of the Goup of 77 was schedul ed for
later in that nonth.

M . PEDROSO CUESTA (Cuba) said that there was usually a hiatus in
the work of the Second and Third Committees of the General Assenbly at the end




E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 14

of Cctober and begi nni ng of Novenber, when the resuned session of the Counci
was usually held. He asked why the resuned session could not take place at
that time.

The PRESIDENT said that, by that tine, the Second and

Third Commttees would be winding up their work and becom ng i nvol ved
in the fornulation and adoption of resolutions. The recomendati ons on
the inmplementation of resolution 50/227 were related to the work of the
General Assenbly, nore specifically to its docunentation and organi zati on of
wor k, and should thus reach the General Comrittee at the very start of the
CGeneral Assenbly's session. There was, indeed, a specific reconmendation in
resol uti on 50/ 227 that the Council's resunmed session should be held before the
start of the General Assenbly's session

If there was no objection, therefore, he would declare the discussion
of agenda item 12 cl osed for the tinme being, on the understanding that the
Council would take a decision on the matter at its next mneeting.
NON- GOVERNVENTAL ORGANI ZATI ONS

(a) REPORT OF THE COWM TTEE ON NON- GOVERNVENTAL ORGANI ZATI ONS

(b) I NCREASE | N THE MEMBERSHI P OF THE COVM TTEE ON NON- GOVERNMENTAL
ORGANI ZATI ONS

(agenda item 13) (E/ 1997/90; E/ 1997/L. 45)
The PRESIDENT invited the Council to take action on the

five proposals contained in chapter | of the report of the Cormittee on
Non- Gover nment al Organi zations (E/ 1997/90). The Secretary would inform
the Council of any programe budget inplications.
He invited the Council to consider the two draft resolutions contained

in chapter |, section A entitled “Enlargenent of the Committee on
Non- GCover nnental Organi zati ons” and “Strengtheni ng of the Non-CGovernnenta
Organi zations section of the United Nations Secretariat”, respectively.

Ms. STARR NEWELL (Assistant Secretary of the Council) said that

the two draft resolutions had no programe budget inplications.
The two draft resolutions were adopted.
The PRESIDENT invited the Council to consider the three draft

deci sions contained in chapter |, section A Draft decision | was entitled

“Applications for consultative status”. |If it adopted that draft decision the



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 15

Council would grant consultative status to a nunmber of non-governnenta
organi zations that were listed therein. There were clearly no progranmme
budget inplications.

Draft decision | was adopted.

M. WNNCK (United States of America) said that his del egation
di sassociated itself fromthe Council's approval of consultative status for
five Cuba-based organizations listed in draft decision |I: the Felix Varela
Center, the Federation of Cuban Wonen, the Latin American and Cari bbean
Continental Organization of Students (OCLAE), the National Association of
Cuban Economi sts, and the National Union of Jurists of Cuba, since his
Government believed that those groups did not neet the definition of an
i ndependent NGO. Moreover, it had doubts regarding the contribution they
could make to furthering the goals and principles of the United Nations.
It had opposed granting them consultative status in the Conmittee on
Non- Gover nmental Organi zations and it opposed the decision just taken
by the Council.

Ms. VALLE CAM NO (Cuba) said that the five Cuba-based NGO naned

by the representative of the United States were all legitinmate and i ndependent
organi zations having their own statutes and financial arrangenents. They al
enjoyed the status of national NGO under Cuban |aw, apart from OCLAE, which
was an international organization whose activities were not contrary to the
princi pl es and purposes of Cuban social policy.

Sonme Governnents, determined to interfere in Cuba's national affairs,
argued that NGOs not working agai nst the Cuban Governnent shoul d never be
gi ven recognition. Nevertheless, the organizations cited represented the
interests of the Cuban people and giving them special consultative status
woul d enable themto work effectively with the Council and within the
United Nations system

The PRESIDENT invited the Council to consider draft decision Il

whereby the Council would authorize the Comrittee on Non- Government a
Organi zations to hold a one-week resunmed session in January 1998, and draft
decision Il entitled “Meetings of the Comrttee on Non- Governmenta
Organi zati ons”.
Ms. STARR NEWELL (Assistant Secretary of the Council) said that no

addi ti onal appropriations would be required and the draft decisions thus had

no programme budget inplications.



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 16

Draft decisions Il and Ill were adopted.
The PRESIDENT invited the Council to take action on the draft

deci si on, proposed by Germany, regarding the participation of non-governnenta
organi zations in several functional comr ssions of the Council (E/ 1997/L.45).
The draft had been cleared in informal consultations and was strictly
pr ocedur al
Draft decision E/1997/L.45 was adopted.
M. HARRI S (President of the Conference of Non-Covernnent al

Organi zations in Consultative Status with the Econom ¢ and Soci al Council)
said that, underlying the specific decisions the Council had just taken, there
were sone | arge issues of a conceptual, political and practical nature which
affected the relati ons between United Nations and NGGCs.

The consultative status of NGOs flowed fromthe provisions of the
Charter of the United Nations. There had been an increasing use of the term
“civil society”, grouping NGOs under the sane heading as the private sector
There were, however, sone quite serious questions with regard to the
definitions of NGOs and “civil society”, and it was inportant to nake a
di stinction between those two conponents of civil society, because of the
significant difference between the participation of NGOs working on behalf
of their constituents, and the participation of specific enterprises, in
particular, multinational enterprises.

At a recent neeting between the Board of the Conference of NGOs
and the Secretary-Ceneral of the United Nations, the Board had asked the
Secretary-Ceneral to comment on the enphasis on the involvenent of the private
sector in United Nations activities. In his response, he had expl ai ned that
the justification for such interest lay in the fact that, in recent years,
there had been a decrease in official devel opnment assistance (ODA) and an
increase in private investnents.

It was inportant to recogni ze, however, that npbst such investnments were

ear mar ked for about 12 countries, and that such investnent did not necessarily



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 17

address real devel opnent issues. NGOs, on the contrary, represented al
constituencies, and their main task was to bring those constituencies within
the anmbit of United Nations activities.

The Conference of NGOs endeavoured to facilitate and inprove the
collective relationship between NGOs and the United Nations. It was to that
end that the Conference had adopted the theme “Defining the Future”. The
Secretary-Ceneral had also alluded to the idea of holding a “Forum of the
M1l enniunt in the year 2000. Such a forum would again raise the issue of
representation. The definition of such representation in a legitimate,
credi ble and effective manner would be a major chall enge.

A few years previously, the then President of the Council had asked
whet her NGOs m ght consider commenting on applications to the Council's
Commi ttee on Non- Governmental Organizations for consultative status and on
whet her certain NGOs should continue to have consultative status. It had been
difficult to respond to such a delicate issue at the tine. That question had
since, however, re-energed in very concrete terns upon the adoption of a
decision at the Council's substantive session of 1996 to place the Nationa
Rifl e Association of the United States on the roster of NGOs with consultative
status; a decision that had scandalized many NGOs.

The Conference of NGOs with Consultative Status had thus decided to
submt a proposal to the next Assenbly to change the rules of the Conference
whereby it woul d be conmposed of NGOs having consultative status which accepted
the ains of the Conference. Consultative status had hitherto been the sole
prerequi site for adnission. The purpose of the proposal was to provide an
unprecedent ed opportunity for the NGO community to say whet her an organi zation
that had been admitted to consultative status should also be adnmitted to the
body that studied the global issue of relations between the United Nations
and NGOs.

On the practical aspect of those relations, he welcomed the Council's
decision to reinforce the secretariat working with NGOs. In addition, in
seeki ng i mproved services and effectiveness, it was essential to address the
need for greater coherence within the secretariat with the various departnents
which |iaised with NGGCs.

The Council had spent three years working on a review of the status of
NGOs whi ch had resulted in the adoption of a resolution [eading to an increase

in the nunber of NGGOs obtaining consultative status. Neverthel ess, the basic



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 18

gquestion relating to the practical neaning of that status remai ned unresol ved.
There was di al ogue and genui ne goodwi || between the United Nations and NGOs,
but there were problens in the practical application of that goodwill on a
daily basis. The NGOs thensel ves needed to inprove their capacities to
interact effectively with the United Nations and its organs. Measures to

i mprove such cooperation were in hand.

The Council was dealing with a wi de range of real problens confronting
comunities throughout the world and it was crucial to exam ne the extent to
whi ch that work was influencing the everyday |ives of the people living in
those communities. NGOs had an opportunity to influence those comunities
directly because of their contact with constituencies in the field rather than
in conference halls. NGO input therefore gave neaning to the deliberations
undertaken by the Council

NEW AND | NNOVATI VE | DEAS FOR GENERATI NG FUNDS (agenda item 14)
(A 52/ 203- E/ 1997/ 85)

M. KHAN (Division for Policy Coordination and Econom ¢ and
Soci al Council Affairs), introducing the Secretary-Ceneral's report
(A/ 52/ 203-E/1997/85), said that, while there was sone overlap w th other
reports relating to funding, consideration of which was still pending, the
two main options for further study were public-private partnerships in
mobi I'i zing fi nance for achieving devel opnent objectives, and national charges
and fees, drawing particularly upon national experience in the area of
environnental protection. OQutlining the areas covered by sections A and B of
the report, which considered public-private partnership and national charges
and fees respectively, he pointed out that, in each of those areas, the report
cont ai ned specific recommendati ons for the Council

In conclusion, he drew the attention of the Council to the

recommendation that the ideas presented in the report should be pursued in the
context of the work of the relevant functional comr ssions, where nobilization
of resources could be related to specific programmes and goals as a key
el enent of the strategy for the inplenentation of the outcones of the major
United Nations conferences. The Council itself needed to address those issues
in the broader context of exam ning funding nechanisns of a cross-sectoral or
non-specific nature. They could then be exam ned in greater depth through

expert bodies such as the Conmittee for Devel opment Pl anning.



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 19

M. AARDAL (Observer for Norway) said that his del egation
supported the Secretary-General's proposal to establish an Ofice for
Devel opnent Financing. Apart fromserving as a focal point for generating
new and innovative financial nechanisns, it could also draw on the work of
internationally recognized experts in that field. Wile his Government was
pl eased to have contributed to the report, it would have |iked to have seen
sone reference to the study it had nentioned in its reply to the Secretariat.

It was nost regrettable that so few Governnments had responded to the
request for information. In view of the scarcity of replies, he wondered
if there was sufficient basis for the rather categorical conclusions in
paragraph 10 of the report. Furthernore, the report focused unduly on
i nformati on provided in those replies and did not adequately address ot her
possibilities which mght hold some potential. The point was all the nore
rel evant since, according to Council resolution 1996/48, the report was to
review the nodality and feasibility, as well as costs and benefits, of the
i mpl enentati on of new and innovative ideas for generating funds.

There was no doubt as to the need for additional funds to inplenment
sust ai nabl e human devel opnent activities, and obtaining such funds would
require innovative ideas. He drew the Council's attention to a semi nar held
at Stockholmin March 1997 whi ch had di scussed “A New Paradi gm of Fi nanci a
Devel opnent and Devel opnent Cooperation” organized by the UNDP Office of
Devel opnent Studies. That sem nar had concluded that private finance for
sust ai nabl e human devel opnent was not a contradiction in terns.

His CGovernnent firmly believed that any new and i nnovative funds shoul d
be additional to ODA and should not be used for core purposes. At the sane
time, it wished to stress the potential of ODA as a | everage for
private-sector funds.

A realistic assessnment would indicate that additional funds nust
originate mainly fromcountries other than the traditional donors and/or
t hrough new and i nnovative fundi ng nechani sns. He enphasi zed, however, that
his Government did not use such discussions as a pretext for failing to neet
commtnents agreed at the recent gl obal conferences.

The inpl enentati on of new forns of taxation and service and user fees,
al ong with various schenmes nentioned under public-private partnership

deserved further study and consi deration



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 20

There was a need for followup and the establishnent of proper links to
the intergovernnental processes. His delegation supported the proposal in
par agraph 46 of the report that the functional commi ssions should be given the
responsibility to continue working on various proposals for the financing of
their respective fields of activity. It was evident that the issues under
di scussion would be central to the overall United Nations reformefforts and
i n discussions on securing additional funds for sustainabl e human-devel opnent
activities.

M. WNNCK (United States of America) said his del egati on agreed
with the underlying prem se of the Secretary-General's report, in particular,
that the private sector was a primry source of financing for neeting
devel opnent objectives and that schenes for charges and taxes on internationa
transactions were not viable. The ability to levy taxes was one of the
fundamental attributes of national sovereignty and, as such, it was not
a power which should be ceded or transferred to intergovernnental bodies.

Several of the ideas proposed by the Secretary-Ceneral on public-private
partnershi ps had potential for successful inplenmentation, and his Government
endorsed the view that private-sector involvenment held the key to fostering
economic growh in the developing world. Private investnment could finance
successful devel opnent projects while nmeeting international standards of
sust ai nabl e devel opnent and providing a return to investors.

He was pleased to note that, in the chapter on charges and fees, there
was consi derabl e focus on national neasures, which could be seen as an outline
for future work in the area of best practices. His Governnent believed that
various user fees and fees for services including at the national |evel were
fundamentally different fromthe issue of taxation and mi ght be expl ored
further. It was also interested in joint inplenentation and tradeabl e
em ssion permts. The suggestions regarding | M- and speci al draw ng
rights (SDRs) were interesting and should be pursued further in the
appropriate bodies. Mcro-credit had consi derable potential for devel opnent
and, to the extent to which micro-credit programres included nechanisns for
nobi |'i zi ng savi ngs, they would seemto contribute to the concept of new and
i nnovati ve ideas for financing.

In conclusion, he assured the Council that his country's nationa
experts would continue to give detailed consideration to the report and his

Government | ooked forward to working with the Secretary-CGeneral, other Menber



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 21

States and the private sector to encourage the inplenmentation of some of the
concepts proposed.
Ms. SCHOSSELER (Luxenbourg) said that the European Union had

submtted its ideas on the subject under discussion, indicating that there
shoul d be a clear distinction between newy generated funds and those used for
the financing of the regular and peacekeepi ng budgets of the United Nations,
that such funds shoul d conpl ement ODA and contribute to the financing of

gl obal devel opnent priorities agreed upon at the major internationa
conf er ences.

The Union had noted that the report was nore linmited in scope than
t he paper distributed by the Secretariat at the Council's previous session
and dealt with nodalities of financing that were outside the Council's
deci si on-maki ng power. Nevertheless, the Union wel coned the attention paid to
the potential of the private sector, at the national and international |evels,
wi th public-sector support. Environnment protection could also provide
financial incentives for sustainable devel opnment, and certain aspects of
the report required further devel opnent in that regard.

The Union wi shed to express its disappointnment, however, at the linmted
nunber of countries which had responded to the Secretary-Ceneral during the
preparation of the report on that crucial issue. The report represented an
i mportant platformfor future discussion in which the Union expected to
participate actively. 1In that context, she wished to informthe Council that
the Netherlands was to host a sem nar on new financial mechanisms in the
autum of 1997.

The Union had noted with interest the suggestions contained in the

report of the Secretary-Ceneral entitled “Renewing the United Nations - A
Programme for Reforni on the financing of devel opnent activities.
M. MCHUMO (CObserver for the United Republic of Tanzania),

speaki ng on behalf of the Goup of 77 and China, said that the major

i nternational conferences had |led to a broader understandi ng of objectives,
goal s and commitnents in fostering dynam c, durable and feasible internationa
devel opnent cooperation. There had been increased realization that globally
agreed conmitnments and priorities were being ignored and not evolving as
expected. ODA targets were not being net and ODA had, in fact, declined to

its lowest level in 10 years. Furthernore, such assistance was increasingly



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 22

bei ng channelled to fund energency relief and peacekeeping activities rather
t han support |ong-term devel opment needs.

Devel opi ng countries were confronted with an unfavourable internationa
econom ¢ environment and, at the sane tinme, had undertaken various nmeasures to
i mpl ement commi tnments, such as structural adjustnent refornms and environment
protection. The report of the Secretary-Ceneral under discussion was a
wel cone attenpt to initiate intergovernnmental dialogue in addressing
initiatives and actions urgently needed to stinulate dynam c internationa
cooperation for devel opnent.

VWhile the theoretical basis of npbst of the proposals were
under st andabl e, the el aboration and explicit identification in terms of best
practices in different countries was lacking. Wth reference to paragraph 8
of the report, he said that there was a need for el aboration and hoped the
exi sting nmechani sns such as the Enhanced Structural Adjustment Facility (ESAF)
and Multilateral Investnment Guarantee Agency (M GA) coul d be possible options
for new and innovative ideas for finance and devel opnent.

I n paragraphs 11 to 14, there was an overriding assunption that the
banki ng and credit system and information technol ogy were functioning well
but that was not the case in many devel oping countries. Likewi se, it was
assunmed that there was a dynamic private sector, while the reality was that,
in many countries, the private sector was in the early stages of growh. It
woul d be useful to nake an assessnment of national and international experience
of private-sector contribution and the resulting inmpact on devel oprnent.

The proposal that investnent incentive in aid delivery could be conbined
with trade preferences, as discussed in paragraph 21, needed clarification in
order to avoid the issue of “tied aid” and conditionality. It would have been
useful to know the vol une of resources generated and used by multilatera
agenci es, nentioned in paragraphs 41 and 42. Lastly, the report had not
addressed the feasibility and effectiveness of technical cooperation anong
devel opi ng countries (TCDC) in the nobilization and use of financial and
techni cal resources

Options which were feasible, durable and capabl e of inplenentation for
new and i nnovative nechani sns nust take into account the inperfections of the
mar ket place and the unlevel playing field between devel oped and devel opi ng
countries. Although there was no doubt that the report presented sone

i nnovati ve ideas on the generation of funds, it was the view of many



E/ 1997/ SR. 40
page 23

devel opi ng countries that enphasis should continue to be placed on ODA and the
techni cal assistance provided by devel oped countries. The approach presented
in the report could only be conplenentary to the existing nodalities, and it
was particularly crucial to ensure that ODA fl ows were given nore inpetus with
a viewto attaining the target of 0.7 per cent of the devel oped countries

gross national product (GNP) as previously agreed.

The neeting rose at 6.15 p. m




